M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 10, 2004
9:04 AM

TAPES

SFC-04 # 7, Side A
SFC 04 # 7, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Lyda Green convened the neeting at approximately 9:04 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson
Senat or Donny O son

Al so Attending: NIl CO BUS, Acting Director, Division of Support
Servi ces, Departnent of Natural Resources; KAREN REHFELD, D rector,
Educati on Support Services, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent; ED FI SHER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnment of Labor
and Wr kf orce Devel opnent; M KE BARTQN, Conm ssioner, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities; KEVIN BROOKS, Director,
Di vision of Adm nistrative Services, Departnent of Fish and Gane

Attending via Tel econference: There were no teleconference
partici pants.

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

DEPARTMENT FY04 STATUS REPORTS

The Conmittee heard updated information on activities in FY 04 from
the Departnent of Natural Resources, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent, Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent,
Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities and Depart nent
of Fish and Gane.

Co-Chair Green shared that over the interim she has heard about

"really good things that have happened” in each departnent; sone as
a result of |egislation passed the previous year.

SFC- 03 (1) 02/ 10/ 04



Co-Chair Geen stressed that the FY 05 budget would not be
di scussed at this hearing.

Co-Chair Green rem nded that the m ssions and neasures apply and
asked the testifiers provide any rel evant updates on these.

Department of Natural Resources

NI CO BUS, Acting Director, D vision of Support Services, Departnent
of Natural Resources, testified to the enphasis on revenue
generation and job enhancenents. He noted the departnent is in the
m dst of identifying which activities acconplish this goal that oi
and gas devel opnent has subsequently becone the prinmary focus, with
other activities organized to synergi ze these efforts.

M. Bus inforned of activities at Flint HIlls, a | ease negotiation
in Bristol Bay, and of negotiations with conpanies to construct a
natural gas line, as announced by Governor Mirkowski the day
before. He pointed out that addressing these initiatives normally
require ten to 15 Departnent staff for each proposed project;
however the Departnent is enploying technology to reduce the nunber
of additional staff necessary. He thanked the Legislature for
provi ding adequate funding for staff needs. He also noted the
permtting process is being streanlined, and that the incorporation
of Habitat Restoration functions into the Departnent has assisted
thi s endeavor.

M. Bus listed the six large mning operations in the State that
require significant coordination on the part of the Departnent. He
enphasi zed that the focus is on results.

M. Bus also told of |ess "obvious" efforts to acconplish the goals
of job enhancenent and revenue generation, including addressing
i ncreased workload for the Recorder's Ofice with tenporary staff
i ncreases funded through suppl enental appropriations. He expl ai ned
that due to low interest rates nationw de, refinancing of honme and
property loans has risen. He noted the workload has increased 50
percent since cal endar year 2000, although revenue has increased
100 percent. He assured that as the workload decreases, the
nonpermanent staff is dismssed. He stated that the increased
revenue is primarily possible through better technol ogy.

M. Bus said that the Departnent's Pipeline Coordinator Ofice is
working with "State and Federal organizations" and the Kenai
Kachemak gasline has recently comrenced with transportation of gas.
He also noted the processing of the "Happy Valley extension
anmendnents”, with construction planned to begin in May 2004 with

SFC- 03 (2) 02/ 10/ 04



conpletion expected in Cctober 2004. He added that the Trans-
Al askan Pipeline System (TAPS) strategic reconfiguration is
underway to maintain the sane |evel of service at a significantly
| ower cost and subsequently generate nore revenue to the State.

M. Bus remarked that the Departnent is devel opi ng prospectuses
with Native corporations and other | andowners with regard to tinber
issues in Interior Alaska. He stated that the Departnent is
pronmoting nore tinber sales with the intent to allow for the
opening of the Ketchikan Veneer MI| and create nore jobs in
Sout heast Al aska.

M. Bus listed the Departnment's total budget at approximtely $100
mllion, with only $30 million general funds, or 30 percent of the
total budget. O the total general funds, he pointed out that $15
mllion, or 50 percent, is expended for fire suppression
activities. He furthered that the | argest single expenditure of the
Department is for fire suppression.

M. Bus inforned that the Departnment is changi ng the decision node
in determning when fires would be fought. He announced this would
be the first year that the Departnent is not requesting
suppl enental funding for fire suppression. He stated this is not
asking for supplenental for fire suppression. Even though fire in
critical area told managers not to fight every fire to full extent
of resources...proved to be effective strategy.

M. Bus continued that the Departnent has elim nated some warehouse
space used to store fire suppression supplies. He said that
currently warehouses in Fairbanks and Pal ner store all equipnent
with the expectation that if another area, such as the Kenai
Peni nsul a were identified as a high-risk area at sone point in the
fire season, supplies and equi pment would be stockpiled in that
area for the duration of the risk. He stated this practice |essen
the need to store supplies for an entire fire season in every area.

M. Bus remarked on efforts to identify those who start fires and
hold them financially accountable. He informed that $500,000 has
been recovered, and that although these funds are deposited to the
general fund, this is a significant acconplishnent. He anti ci pated
these actions would result in others exercising caution in
preventing fires to avoid simlar charges.

M. Bus told of a warehouse located in Eagle River utilized to
store all core sanples. He stated that although the Division of
Geol ogi cal and Geophysical Surveys is only the custodian of this
material, the State was bearing the storage costs. He inforned that
regul atory fees assessed by the Alaska G| and Gas Conservation

SFC- 03 (3) 02/ 10/ 04



Comm ssion (AOGCC) on industry would be utilized to pay these
expenses.

M. Bus relayed that the Departnment is also working with the
private sector to reduce expenses. He exanpled that certain
information is now provided via the Internet rather than through
printed material.

M. Bus also inforned that the Division of Ol and Gas and the
Division of Geological and GCeophysical Surveys are conbining
efforts on energy-rel ated projects.

M. Bus spoke of the 121 park units within the State and the
decision to outsource operation of these units. He rem nded that
the Departnent was faced with the closure of 11 units in 2002
because of inadequate funding, although nine were opened through
the wuse of private contracting and additional funding was
identified to operate the two remaining units. He stated that the
Departnent received feedback fromthe contractors on continuing the
process of outsourcing and he relayed intent to identify additiona
units in FY 05 to outsource.

M. Bus noted the Division of Agriculture utilizes no general
funds; however, he informed the Conmttee of the Departnent's goal
to maxim ze returns to the Agriculture Revolving Loan Fund. He al so
rem nded that the D vision assuned operation of the neat processing
pl ant, and he rel ayed that i medi ate managenent actions were taken
to reduce the nunmber of inmates working at the facility and thus
reduci ng the nunber of guards needed. He stated the intent is to
transfer the facility to private ownership or a cooperative
or gani zati on by 2006.

M. Bus summarized the "underpinning"” of all efficiency nmeasures.
He stated that investnments in automation of resource nanagenent
activities would save noney. He also noted the Departnent is
partnering with the federal Bureau of Land Managenent, as both
agencies utilize the sane system to manage land. In addition to
elimnating duplication of efforts, he said this partnering allows
the Departnent to receive federal grants to fund 40 percent of
operations conpared to the previous need for 100 percent general
funds. He added that the Departnent is also able to utilize "soft
funds” from Native corporations and private | andowners.

M. Bus also noted that no additional admnistrative staff was
added, despite the assunption of the Habitat and Restoration duties
fromthe Departnent of Fish and Gane.

Co-Chair Green suggested that the budget subconm ttees address

SFC- 03 (4) 02/ 10/ 04



guestions and further information on these presentations.

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

KAREN REHFELD, Director, Education Support Services, Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, testified that the Departnent has
a budget of $952 mllion, not including funding for school debt
rei mbursenent. She stated that 95 percent of the budget is
appropriated to school districts in the formof grants. She listed
319 full time positions within the Departnent, and of those, 104
enpl oyed by Al aska Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education, i.e. the
student | oan program

Ms. Rehfeld cited the Departnent's main mssion is to inprove
student achievenent. She noted that to achieve this goal, the
Al aska Vocational Technical Center (AVIEC) was transferred fromthe
Departnent to the Departnment of Labor and Wbrkforce Devel opnent,
and childcare prograns were transferred to the Departnent of Health
and Social Services. She stated these changes have allowed the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent to focus on its
m ssion and adm ni ster prograns wthout affecting school districts.

Ms. Rehfeld informed that the Departnent has consolidated
activities with other agencies to inprove services for a |ower
cost. She furthered that sone systens have been converted to web-
based systens to becone easier available to the public and to
school districts.

Ms. Rehfeld relayed that the new conm ssioner started in June 2003
and inpressed upon Departnment enployees a "vision"™ that
communi cation is the "key element”. She told of positive feedback
fromschool districts regarding the quality of service provided by
the Departnent. She noted that many Departnent staff were focused
on internal processes to ensure a high level of service.

Ms. Rehfeld said the State Board of Education has focused on four
areas: closing the achievenent gap; refining state assessnent and
accountability system professional devel opnent, standards-based
instruction; and effective use of instructional tine.

Ms. Rehfeld overviewed major program areas, including the
integration of the Learning Opportunity Gants funding into the
"student base", inplenenting the provisions of SB 202 Public

School s Fundi ng Program passed by the Legislature the previous
session, inplenenting the pupil transportation grant program as
well as the federal No Child Left Behind program . She noted the
base student allocation is currently $4,169 per student. She told
of efforts with us Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent

SFC- 03 (5) 02/ 10/ 04



federal regulators and areas still needing addressing, such as
possi bl e changes to the accountability workbook waivers and the
testing requirenents for the heritage |anguage prograns, in
addition to the requirenents for "highly qualified" teachers. She
stated the Departnent is addressing smaller schools in which
teachers are instructing multiple subjects.

Ms. Rehfeld rem nded that the high school graduation "exit exant
woul d be in effect this spring. She stated that the Departnent has
i npl enented regul ations for a waiver and appeal process.

Ms. Rehfeld told of a contractor enployed to eval uate and upgrade
the assessnent exam nations. She stated the Departnent is also
attenpting to ensure nore instructional time with students.

Ms. Rehfeld described the transition of the State-operated Al yeska
Central School to the Yukon- Kuskokwi m School District. She stated
that the Y-K District would submt a charter school application to
the Board of Education outlining how the correspondence program
woul d be operat ed.

Ms. Rehfeld sunmarized that the Departnent has nade significant
progress in neeting its goals.

Senat or Bunde read that the National Education Associ ation-Al aska
has passed a resolution suggesting the State "ignore" the No Child
Left Behind program He noted this would result in a |loss of
federal funding, and asked if the Departnent had informati on on the
financi al inpact of such an action.

Ms. Rehfeld told of discussions as to anount of federal funds that
would be relinquished if the State did not participate in the
federal program She relayed that the exact anmount of federa
funding that woul d be jeopardi zed i s unknown.

Department of Labor and Wor kf orce Devel opnent

ED FI SHER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnment of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent, testified that the Departnment is a "mxture of
products and services and divisions that primarily are focused on
hel ping people and enployers find each other”, including the
Division of Business Partnership, the D vision of Enploynent
Security, and the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation. He al so
noted the Division of Wirkers' Conpensati on provides benefits for
infjured workers, thus ensuring replacenent conpensation for
sal ari es when these workers are unable to work.

M. Fisher stated that the Division of Labor Standards and Safety

SFC- 03 (6) 02/ 10/ 04



acts as a law enforcenent entity occupational safety and health
| aws, wage and hour | aws, and buil ding and public safety | aws. He
noted this Division perfornms nechanical inspections and issues
Certificates of Fitness to electricians, plunbers, boiler
operators, and also enforces the federal Occupational Safety and
Health Act as directed by the Legislature.

M. Fisher relayed that the Division of Admnistrative Services
oversees the data processing and information technol ogy functions,
as well as standard adm nistrative functions.

M. Fisher inforned that the Conmi ssioner's Ofice operates the
Al aska Labor Rel ations Agency. He explained the primary function of
this agency is |abor certification and to settle disputes between
enpl oyers and bargaining units, both within State governnent and
private enployers. He noted the Agency follows the sane guidelines
as the federal Labor Rel ations Board.

M . Fisher enphasized the Departnent is attenpting to make the
delivery of services nore efficient, particularly in the area of
wor kf orce devel opnment. He stated that the Division of Business
Part nershi ps was separated fromthe former Division of Enploynent
Security with the intent of providing an "enployer friendly"
envi ronment for grant funds through the Workforce |Investnent Act,
the Denali Training Fund and other progranms. He explained this new
Division allows for a single process for all grant prograns
relating to training Al askans for jobs, regardless of the funding
source. He stated that a "process of due diligence" has al so been
inplenented with the intent to ensure the grantees financial
ability and wherewithal to carry out the stipulations of the grants
which it receives. He noted this has been attenpted previously.

M. Fisher told of the reduction of "several |ayers of nanagenent,"”
i ncluding the conbination of workforce investnent boards, into a
single statewide planning area as directed by the W rkforce
| nvest ment Act. He stated this nerger has resulted in $450,000 to
$500, 000 admi ni strative cost savings, which is now avail able for
trai ning prograns and grants.

M. Fisher furthered that the Departnent has elimnated a nunber of
positions and reduced the nunber and cost of State vehicles, and
reduced travel to "only that travel which is necessary to carry out
the functions of the Departnent-the prograns of the Departnent." He
stated that nore neetings are conducted by teleconference and
vi deoconference technology and that nost travel is directed to
areas wi thout the technology for tel econferencing.

M. Fisher rem nded of Governor Mirkowski's State of the State

SFC- 03 (7) 02/ 10/ 04



address of 2003, in which the Governor l|listed his priorities to
create jobs by developing the econony, and ensuring healthy
famlies and safe communities. M. Fisher translated this into the
Department's mssion to strive for full enploynment of the Al aska
wor kforce to neet the Governor's goals. He also noted the
i nportance of elimnating accidents fatalities in the workpl ace.

Co-Chair Geen noted the reductions outlined by the Deputy
Comm ssioner and asked if the level of services has renmained
unchanged.

M. Fisher assured that customers woul d not experience any nateri al
change in services from actions taken as a result of the FY 04
budget. However, he pointed out that the FY 05 budget would result
in service reductions.

Senator O son noted the decreasing nunber of enployees in the
Depart ment and asked the nunber of elimnated positions as well as
t he nunber of vehicles utilized by the Departnent.

M. Fisher qualified that the "nunbers are m sl eadi ng" due to the
Departnment's acquisition of the Alaska Vocational and Technica
Center and the 35 enployees of the Center. He anticipated the
elimnation of 27 positions in FY 05.

Senat or O son requested further clarification.

Co-Chair Green directed further discussion on this matter be held
in the budget subcommittee.

Senat or Bunde inquired about the "challenges" to the workers'
conpensati on program and the "unenpl oynment issue".

M. Fisher relayed that the Division of Insurance in the Departnent
of Revenue, has declared a crisis for the Wrkers' Conpensation
program as a result of the insolvency of an insurance carrier,
Freenont Indemity. This insolvency, he said has affected the
guar ant ee associ ation, "the safety net for workers conp insurance",
whi ch i s subsequently experiencing a "serious cash flow situation".
He noted | egislation has been introduced to provide funding for the
program as well as restructure the program

M. Fisher continued that unenploynent insurance prem uns woul d
i ncrease because of a cal culation nmade to determ ne the sol vency of
the trust fund, after two or three years of high unenpl oynent in
which the trust fund was "slightly depleted'. However, he noted
that the trust allows for recuperation of these funds with the
current increase in enploynent.

SFC- 03 (8) 02/ 10/ 04



Senator Bunde commented that these two natters would have the
greatest inpact on A askans, given that nost A askans are enpl oyed.

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

M KE BARTQN, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities, testified that Governor Mirkowski reorganized the
Departnent into three major "deputy areas": aviation, highways and
public facilities and mari ne operations. M. Barton furthered that
the Governor also created two advisory boards: the Aviation
Advi sory Board and the Marine Advisory Board. M. Barton noted that
t hese boards are working diligently and are proving beneficial to
the Departnent's efforts.

M. Barton told of the consolidation of aviation |easing activities
and the realized savings for personnel and other costs, and nore
importantly, the consistency that has resulted between and within
ai rports.

M. Barton stated that the design functions of the Departnment were
decentralized. He admtted that this change, affecting 500
enpl oyees, is still being inplenented, noting valid reasons for
centralization and decentralization. However, he expressed this
change "sets the stage" for a new project nmanagenent schene from
i nception to conpletion. He assured this would result in shortened
tinmelines.

M. Barton informed that the Departnent is inplenenting "term
contracts”, which he explained as a system of developing a
conprehensive listing of engineering services and pre-qualified
firms available to performthese services. He detailed that firns
woul d be chosen from this list to provide services for various
projects, thus elimnating the need to issue bidding requests and
subsequent|ly saving several nonths tine.

M. Barton relayed that studies of the A aska Marine H ghway System
(MHS) are underway that may result in a nunber of changes or

out sour ci ng. He Ilisted areas wunder review ticketing and
reservations, coordination with the Alaska Railroad, term nal
oper ati ons, mar ket i ng, shore side nmanagenent, and vessel

construction nanagenent. He stated that changes to current
practices could result in significant savings. He furthered that
the Departnent is reviewing the fare structure to determ ne price
sensitivity in the marketpl ace.

M. Barton listed road projects under devel opnent as a result of
the Resource Roads Program created under the direction of the

SFC- 03 (9) 02/ 10/ 04



Covernor: Colville R ver Road, Pleasure Creek Road, Pogo Ri ver Road
of f of Spine Road. Crooked Creek Road to access Doyon, and Pebbl e
Copper Road near Lake Illiama.

M. Barton said the Departnent is also working to streamine the
environnmental permt process, acquiescing nost of which beyond the
State's control due to federal regulations. He stated this has
provi ded incentive to undertake projects w thout federal funding.
He noted however that the federal Corps of Engineers has been
assisting in expediting the process, as well as the US Coast Quard,
whi ch has been assisting in securing navigation permts.

M. Barton relayed that sea trials for the newly constructed MV
Fai rweat her are underway.

SFC 04 # 7, Side B 09:52 AM

M. Barton continued that this vessel is able to travel at speeds
up to 42 knots. He reported that the State shoul d recei ve ownership
in March 2004 and the vessel would be put into service in My.

M. Barton also reported that the Lieutenant Governor Lenan
christened the MV Lituya, which would ferry passengers between
Saxman and Metl akatla and is able to withstand heavy seas.

M. Barton informed that the State recently attai ned ownership of
the Adak Airport through an agreenent with the Native corporation
Al t hough some have characterized this acquisition as another
"Seward's Folly", he deened it an investnent in Al aska's future.

Co-Chair Wl ken asked if State |aw prohibits expansion of design
and build efforts.

M. Barton responded that he was reviewing the matter and woul d
report his findings.

Co-Chair WIlken surmsed that such efforts are appropriate but
recalled earlier attenpts to undertake design and build projects
presented difficulty.

M. Barton agreed that these efforts were not always "greeted"
favorably by contractors and design consultants. He admtted that
t he Departnent has undertakes seven or eight design build projects
over the past several years.

Co-Chair Geen shared that she has been serving wth the

SFC- 03 (10) 02/ 10/ 04



Comm ssioner on the Knik Arm Bridge and Toll Authority and she
appreci ated the professional services and advice provided by the
Depart nment .

M. Barton next announced that he was uncertai n whether the federal
hi ghway reauthorization would be conpleted before the next
presidential election in Novenber 2004, suggesting that instead the
current resolution could be continued or reauthorized for 18 nonths
rat her than the usual six-year reauthorization.

M. Barton stated that the Qmibus Appropriation Act passed by
Congress al so has "sonme chal |l enges” for the State.

Co-Chair G een spoke to the difficulty for the public in hearing
for many years about certain projects that are never constructed.
She appreciated the "reality check” the Departnent provides in
relaying tinmelines of projects, as well as specific federal
requi renents and subsequent penalties if not conplied wth.

Department of Fish and Gane

KEVIN BROOKS, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,

Department of Fish and Gane, testified that of the total $132.5
mllion budget, only 20 percent is general funds. O the general

funds, he stated that 90 percent, or $24 nillion of $27 mllion,

are appropriated to the Division of Comrercial Fisheries. He
rem nded that the Division's budget was reduced $1 mllion genera

funds in the current fiscal year. He infornmed that this reduction
was mnimzed wth additional federal funding and funding from
ot her sources.

M. Brooks reported on coordination of efforts of the Division of
Commercial Fisheries and the Division of Sport Fish for the
managenent of fisheries. He qualified that the divisions have
different m ssions. He spoke of federal funds received to research
Chi nook salnmon. He stated that the divisions would consolidate
techni cal reporting processes and review bionetrics functions. He
al so noted that the printing of all regulation booklets has been
consolidated, utilizing the Internet wherever possible.

M. Brooks furthered that the D vision of Comercial Fisheries is
reviewing all assets used for fisheries managenent, specifically
research vessels and aircraft. He infornmed that ol der vessels are
bei ng replaced, and the fleet is being streamined. He stated that
t he Departnment owns nmany smaller boats in various |ocations across
the State. He inforned that the Departnment and the Departnent of
Public Safety are collaborating on the use of these vessels. He
noted that in many instances, personnel from both departnents are

SFC- 03 (11) 02/ 10/ 04



inthe field at the sane tinme for various fisheries openings.

M. Brooks rem nded of the changes relating to the habit permtting
process in which the Division of Habitat Restoration was elim nated
and its functions transferred to the D vision of Sport Fish and the
Department of Natural Resources. He listed the four primry
function areas retained by the Departnment of Fish and Gane: speci al
areas permtting; access defense across federal |ands; habitat
research and restoration, 1i.e. Kenai riverbank restoration
projects, and the research facility located at Kachemak Bay
restoration; and nmariculture | eases.

M. Brooks stated that wldlife predator control has begun in
Nel china and MGath, wth the intent of benefiting gane
popul ations in these areas.

M . Brooks remarked that the Departnent has been actively invol ved
in statewide administrative initiatives including the hunman
resources consolidation, consolidations of mailroom services in
Juneau, and statew de information technology planning. He added
that the Departnent is nore closely scrutinizing travel requests
and reducing them where possible. In addition, he stated that
numer ous nenber shi ps and subscriptions have been cancel | ed.

Co-Chair WI ken commented that he had not realized that 90 percent
of the general funds appropriated to the Departnment were all ocated
to the Division of Conmercial Fisheries.

Senat or Dyson asked the anobunt of revenue anticipated from test
fishing.

M. Brooks responded that $1.8 million was generated in FY 03 from
these activities.

Senat or Dyson asked the anount generated from salnon fisheries
conpared to other species.

M. Brooks stated he would provide this information.

Senat or Dyson understood the Departnent anticipated generating a
simlar amount of revenues fromtest fisheries in the next year.

M. Brooks infornmed that the Departnent was granted receipt

authority for $2.8 million of test fisheries revenue, an anount
hi gher than the anticipated actual revenues. He stated that the
revenue varies by project and that although small increases have

occurred there have been no dramatic increases in revenue.

SFC- 03 (12) 02/ 10/ 04



Senator Dyson asked if all receipts generated fromtest fisheries
are invested in research activities.

M. Brooks replied that the revenues are utilized for the
managenent of the test fishery in which the funds were generated
and not transferred to other fisheries or other areas of the State.

ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co- Chair Lyda G een adjourned the neeting at 10: 09 AM

SFC- 03 (13) 02/ 10/ 04



